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“The biggest improvement
I'have seen lately at IFF is the
way our processes are being
harmonized and standardized,
and communicated to the
teams in the different areas”

“IFF is unique because it brings
together unique personalities,
which together create the
magic of IFF”"

“Ilike working at IFF because
each day is different and
i challenging, with never-ending
! learning due to the dynamics
. of our industry”

“When people ask me what
IFF does, 1 tell them we create
the tastes and smells of
our lives”
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[ “IFFis unique because like i
| every snowflake, no two days |
at work are ever the same” |

“| like working at {FF
because | do it with freedom
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hat is the essence of [FF?

s not just capturing an emotion, a memory.
npointing the indispensable nature of a sensory experience.

s not just a purely visceral, personal reaction.

s sustaining that ideal moment,
st for a moment, time and again.

s also business and science.
oprietary molecules and practical applications.
s people, relationships.

e perfect combination of creativity and precision.

s finding a better way.

5 the pursuit of excellence.










PARIS, FRANCE

Est-elle plus belle que moi? Est-ce
que cest important? Est-ce quwoh
ne peut pas étre belles toutes les o
deux? Pourquoi ont-ils pris la pho
alors que j'avais la bouche pleine?
Je parie que ma mere n'a jamais
mis de vernis & ongle fdude. £t je
sais gu'elle n'a jamais gardé ses -

gants pour manger. PR
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Where does the essence of flovor cood bonsmoe e

Not complex caleulations, or soaeni,
I's not buried deep in compu

or planted in a greenhouse.

[T SR S

It comes from ce cream. and mowag B

A first date, a first dance.
Summer vacations and a winter = puisg

It comes trom the imagination.
tnggermg your memaory.

It takes you here and me there

it's your personality.

We've dedicated ourselves
to understanding every facet

We understand you.

Our perfumers ancjfi’m‘nsfs v s Dreadihne
scents and tastes.
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

| will look back on 2002 as a year in which IFF delivered on its
promises to customers and shareholders alike, despite unprecedented
and often unforeseen challenges around the globe. Chief among our
accomplishments were successfully completing the integration of Bush
Boake Allen (BBA), quickly realizing the aggressive savings targets we
had set for ourselves, reorganizing globally into One IFF and improving

all aspects of customer service.

2002 HIGHLIGHTS - THE FOUNDATION IS IN PLACE

Before the end of 2002, we disbanded our last
integration team. By every key measure, the integra-
tion and reorganization were successful. Many in the
financial community doubted we could achieve so
much in so short a time, but even the skeptics seem to
have come around. Our stock price at the end of 2002
was virtually double what it had been when we
announced the acquisition, and we outperformed the
S&P 500 by about 33%. Fortune placed us squarely
on its “Most Admired” list, BusinessWeek named us
one of their “Nifty Fifty” for our solid stock market per-
formance and Forbes counted us on its “Platinum List
of Best Companies in America

While the task of turning our Company around is
far from over, we are firmly on the path to sustainable,
long-term growth. Our win rate continues to improve
across categories and geographies, the best indicator
of customer satisfaction. Even in a sector such as Fine
Fragrance that has been broadly impacted by the
global economic slowdown, IFF continues to grow in
comparison with its competitors.

CONTINUING OUR REINVENTION -
THE PURSUIT OF EXCELLENCE

What IFF has accomplished in the last two years
convinces me that we have the ability to reclaim
undisputed industry leadership. Our commitment to
continuous improvement has only intensified. Through
a range of “Business Excellence” initiatives, we are
ensuring a more disciplined, forward-looking and
globally consistent approach to sales and operations
planning. Everyone in our organization — whether they
be in business development, operations or our staff
functions — is aligned and coordinated in their efforts
to deliver to our customers what they want...when,
where and how they want it.

It is clear that neither IFF nor any other company
can cost cut its way to growth. So, at the same time as
we are diligently working to become more efficient
and effective, we are also focusing on avenues for
sustainable top-line growth. To that end, we have been
increasing our investment in Research and Development,
with a particular emphasis on what | call capital “R"
Research — the kind that gives us proprietary mole-
cules and technology. The kind that made IFF the
industry standard in the first place.



Through our Natural Products group, including the
Laboratoire Monique Rémy in Grasse, France, we have
an excellent pipeline of new, high quality natural flavor
and fragrance ingredients. Our Sensory and Consumer
Science group helps strengthen our consumer insight
through industry-leading programs in fragrance profil-
ing, sensory perception, the genetics of flavor and fra-
grance preference and the emotional effects of aromas
on mood, performance, health and well-being. We link
these sensory methodologies with the best from our
Analytical Science group for an understanding of flavor
and fragrance preference that is second-to-none. And
with key breakthroughs in material science technology,
we ensure that our research discoveries have practical
applications in the marketplace.

IFF's reinvention, reawakening and re-establishment
will continue. Everyone at our Company should take great
pride in our success to date.

OLD ECONOMY COMPANY - OLD WORLD VALUES

IFF is prepared for continued tough times
throughout 2003. Given the extreme tension in the
Middle East and parts of Asia, | do not anticipate a swift
economic recovery. If anything, the global economic and
political picture could worsen this year, escalating the
deflationary cycle we are already experiencing. In times
such as these, our various stakeholders benefit from
the fact that 85% of our activity is in recession-resistant
businesses. After the meteoric boom and even more
meteoric bust of the dot-com era, | am pleased that IFF
is often referred to as an “old economy company.” IFF
makes real products that enhance real people’s lives
every day...in good times and not so good times. And
we do it “the old fashioned way" — with integrity, hon-
esty, creativity and hard work as our cornerstones.

The basic business foundation on which IFF first
achieved preeminence remains rock solid. Similarly, the
basic values set forth by our founding Chairmen are
the same ones that continue to guide us today.
Throughout this Report, you will see the faces and
words of IFF co-workers around the world. | can think of

no better way to exemplify IFF in Pursuit of Excellence
than through snapshots of our people at work.
Throughout 2003 and beyond, all of us at IFF renew the
following commitments:

> Toour customers: to bring you outstanding service,
innovation and insight;

> Toour shareholders: to pursue top-line growth and
bottom-line improvement in profits and earnings
per share;

> To our co-workers: to work together in order to
win as a team and benefit as individuals.

Finally, no summary of 2002 would be complete
without mention of a great loss in the IFF family. In
December 2002, Dr. Braja D. Mookherjee — IFF'’s
Director of Natural Products Research — passed away.
Many of you had the good fortune to meet or work with
Braja during his 38 years with our Company. Braja's
hand touched nearly everything at IFF, from the major
impact chemicals we use to key technologies such as
Living Flavor? Living Flower? Aura of Aroma™ and
hydroponics.

More than perhaps anyone | know, Braja embodied
the idea of finding the place where art and science
meet and using it to create magic for our customers
and consumers. My colleagues tell me that they feel
Braja’s presence in our greenhouse, and | am sure they
are right. His spirit will live on at IFF.

Sincerely,

Qwu Y~

Richard A. Goldstein
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
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Through ConsumerEdge, IFF's
team of qualitative research
experts brings unique insights
about fragrance, concept and
brand development to our
customers.

IFF's Perfumery School
recognizes that what we

do is both art and science.

In Grasse, Hilversum and
New York, the next generation
of leading perfumers learns
the tools of the trade.

70% of IFF's business comes
from outside the United States. :
The emerging market areas of
China, India and Latin America
are key to our strategy moving
forward.

A powerful moral and ethical
core runs through our Company.
Our values...our Code of
Conduct...our environmental
and philanthropic efforts. ..

our understanding that nothing
is so important that it cannot

be done safely.

iPlot™. Living Flower®. Living
Fruits®. Generessence®. Ultra
Natural™. Hydroponics. Dried,
chilled, coated, encapsulated,
water soluble, liquid and granu-

lated delivery platforms. The

Consumer Fragrance Thesaurus.

Pheromones. CoolTek™. If it
differentiates our customers’
products, we've got it.

Making IFF a great place to
work means continual learning,
practical training, management
development, Rewarding
Results, opportunities for
growth. Understanding the
Company's vision and one’s
role in achieving it. The encour-
agement to take prudent risks.
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The essencs




A MEXICO CITY, MEXICO
2002 was a year of unprecedented economic, social and
political turmoil for Latin America. The challenges confronting our
region will continue in 2003. The only way for IFF Latin America to
achieve our goals and satisfy our customers moving forward is by work-
ing together as a dedicated, focused and passionate team...always
looking for the better way...always striving to drive top-line growth.

Our team is committed to this.
Graciela Ferro, VP and Regional Manager, Latin America

> SEOUL, SOUTH KOREA
For IFF Asia Pacific, the customer is the first and last word. We
are focused on providing product and service excellence to our cus-
tomers and thereby adding value to their businesses. It is through close
partnership with our customers that we will gain their confidence. And
it is through close partnership with our customers that IFF can, in turn,
achieve sustainable growth. 2003 will be a key measuring stick in
terms of our ability to deliver.
Robert Burns, VP and Regional Manager, Asia Pacific

> SOUTH BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY
In North America, IFF knows what it needs tc do...and we're
doing it. In 2002, we met all of our integration targets at the same time
as we provided seamless and even improved service to our customers,
We completed the divestiture of all non-core businesses and our entire
team is now involved in increasing our efficiency and effectiveness
through Business Excellence. Through it all, we maintain our commit-
ment — internally and externally — to open communication, transparency
and corporate social responsibility.
Jim Dunsdon, VP and Regicnal Manager, North America










< HILVERSUM, THE NETHERLANDS
In 2002, with the successful integration of BBA into IFF, we
have strengthened the foundation on which to accelerate our business
perfermance. IFF is well positioned to grow in the region, despite pre-
dictions of a weak European economy overall. Our business develop-
ment and operations teams are seamlessly aligned and uniformly
focused on bringing first-class, cutting edge creations and services to
consumers today...and for years to come.
Rob J. M. Edelman, VP and Regional Manager, Europe

v BOCA RATON, FLORIDA

In 2002, IFF made great strides in terms of aligning and
unifying business development and operations in the best interest of
our customers. Key 2002 accomplishments include completing the
closure or consolidation of 26 facilities as part of our integration, the
rationalization and simplification of our ingredients catalogue, improve-
ments in aroma chemicals customer service, the successful implemen-
tation of SAP in several of our manufacturing facilities, and progress
on our e-business initiative. Through a coordinated and disciplined
approach to Business Excellence and sales and operations planning,
we are making significant progress in our reinvention.

D. Wayne Howard, Executive Vice President, Global Operations




A CHENNAL, INDIA

A year after the integration of Bush Boake Allen India Ltd,
the new IFF India is now a more comprehensive and cohesive organi-
zation...better able to understand our customers’ needs and deliver on
them. Our 2002 results in terms of both sales and profits reflect our
enhanced effectiveness. Improved technology in most disciplines and
continued knowledge and skills training enabled us to grow faster than
the market. IFF India is the leader in both flavors and fragrances.

Arun Bewoor, VP and Regional Manager, India Region
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What makes us the industry leader?

Is it outstanding customer service,
or our undying pursuit of excellence?

QOur motivation?
[nnovation.

Leading our field on every continent,
and in space.

We have the resources to serve you anywhere in the world.

We are a partner, an intellectual resource.

We understand you.

‘We're in the business of harnessing the intangible,
transforming the properties of nature into product.

‘We live in the moment where art meets science.

-We love what we do.

In essence >






FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS International Flavors & Fragrances [nc.

(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2002 2001 2000

Net sales — as reported $1,809.2 $1,843.8 $1,462.8
Net sales — pro-formaf@ $1,799.8 $1,760.0 $1,777.3
Net income® $ 175.9 116.0 $ 1230
income excluding nonrecurring charges(®) $ 183.7 135.1 $ 1498
Diluted net income per sharet®) $ 184 1.20 $ 122
Diluted per share results excluding nonrecurring charges(®) $ 1.92 1.40 $ 148
Research and development expense $ 1440 135.2 $ 1127
Research and development expense as a % of sales 8.0% 7.3% 7.7%
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2433 181.5 $ 2691

Working capital $ 507.3 336.1 $ (160.1)
Current ratio 2.4 1.6 0.9
Debtlc! $ 9932 $1,159.0 $1,270.4
Return on average shareholders’ equity 32.0% 20.1% 16.5%
Closing stock price $ 35.10 $ 20.71 $ 20.30

NET SALES DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE

(IN BILLIONS}

$1.92
$176  $181 $180 $184

00 o1 02 00 o1 02
D NET SALES - AS REPORTED D DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE AS REPORTED
D NET SALES - PRO-FORMA D DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE EXCLUDING NONRECURRING CHARGES
RETURN ON AVERAGE DEBT®
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (IN MILLIONS)
(PERCENT)
32.0% S1.2704 $1,159.0
20.1%
16.5%
00 01 02 00 01 02

@ Prgpared as though the Company and BBA were combined as of January 1, 2000 and excluding sales associated with non-core businesses disposed of in 2001 and 2002.

) FAS 142 adopted January 1, 2002, eliminating amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles. Reported results reflect amortization expense of $33.0 million or $0.34 per share in
2001, and $5.0 miltion or $0.05 per share in 2000 that would have been eliminated had FAS 142 been applied for all periods presented.

) Excludes deferred gains on interest rate swaps of $63.5 million, $8.3 million, and $0, in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

FINANCIALS
25 Management's Discussion and Analysis of 37 Cansolidated Statement of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition Shareholders' Equity
33 Report of Management 38 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
33 Report of Independent Accountants 51 Quarterly Financial Data
34 Consolidated Statement of Income 51 Stock Prices
35 Consolidated Balance Sheet 52 Five-Year Summary
24 38 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF international Flavors & Fragrances Inc.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

OCPERATIONS

The Company acquired Bush Boake Allen (“BBA") effective November 3, 2000; BBA operating results are included in the
Company's consolidated results from that date.
Net sales for 2002, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

Percent Percent
NET SALES 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
Flavors $ 809.0 (3%) $ 835.7 40% $ 597.7
Fragrances 1,000.2 {1%) 1,008.1 17% 865.1
Total net sales $1,809.2 {2%) $1,843.8 26% $1,462.8

In 2002, net sales declined 2% in comparison to 2001. Sales were favorably affected by the weakening of the U.S. dollar, most
notably against the Euro, the Japanese Yen and the Australian dollar; had exchange rates remained the same during 2002 and 2001, sales
would have decreased 3%.

In 2001, net sales increased 26% in comparison to 2000, with the increase being primarily due to the inclusion of sales attributable
to the BBA business. Sales were unfavorably impacted by the stronger U.S. dollar, most notably against the Euro and the Japanese Yen;
had exchange rates remained the same during 2001 and 2000, sales would have increased 28%.

In conjunction with the integration of IFF and BBA, and as part of a restructuring of the Company’s operations, certain non-core
businesses (hereinafter referred to as the “non-core businesses") were disposed of during 2001 and 2002. These non-core businesses
included the Company's fruit preparations businesses in North and Latin America, its North American concentrates business and a
portion of the aroma chemicals business acquired in the BBA transaction. The non-core businesses had combined net sales of $103.3 in
2000; in 2001 and 2002, the non-core businesses had sales of $83.8 and $9.4, respectively, in the periods they were owned by the
Company. The non-core businesses were disposed of in a series of separately negotiated transactions with third parties; disposal of
these businesses did not materially impact the Company’s operating results.

Pro-forma sales, prepared as though the Company and BBA had been combined as of January 1, 2000 and excluding all sales
associated with the non-core businesses, would have been as follows:

Pro-forma Percent Pro-forma Percent Pro-forma

MET SALES 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
Flavors $ 79%.6 1% $ 788.7 - $ 788.1
Fragrances 1,000.2 3% 971.3 (2%) 989.2
Total net sales $1 ,789.8 2% $1 ,760.0 (1%) $1 777.3

Approximately 70% of the Company's sales are outside the United States. The following table summarizes sales on a geographic basis:

Percent Percent

SALES BY DESTINATION 2002 Change 2001 Change 2000
North America $ 5708 (4%) $ 597.1 31% $ 4554
Europe 8671.4 2% 658.1 23% 536.4
Asia Pacific 290.9 2% 286.2 30% 220.7
Latin America 2275 (11%) 256.5 Q% 2349
India Region 48.5 6% . 459 198% 15.4

Total net sales $1,809.2 (2%) $1,843.8 26% $1,462.8

25
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Pro-forma sales on a geographic basis, prepared as though the Company and BBA had been combined as of January 1, 2000 and
excluding all sales associated with the non-core businesses, would have been as follows:

Pro-forma

SALES BY DESTINATION 2002

Pro-forma
2000

Percent Pro-forma Percent
Change 2001 Change

$ 561.7
671.4
290.8
227.4

48.5

North America
Europe

Asia Pacific
Latin America
India Region

$ 5424
650.7
203.3
249.1

41.8

1% $ 554.9 2%

7% 627.8 (4%)

3% 283.7 (3%)
(9%} 2494 -
10% 44.2 6%

Total net sales $1,799.8

2% $1,760.0 (1%) $1,777.3

In 2002, pro-forma sales increased 2% in comparison to the
comparable 2001 sales; had exchange rates remained the same dur-
ing 2002 and 2001, such pro-forma sales would have increased 1%.
Regional sales performance for 2002 was as follows:
> Sales in North America increased by 1% led by a 4%

increase in flavor sales; North American fragrance sales

were flat for the year.

> Local currency sales in Europe increased 3%, resulting in a
dollar increase of 7% due to the stronger Euro. Local cur-
rency fragrance sales in Europe increased 7%, resulting in
an increase of 12% in dollars. Flavor sales in Europe

declined 3% in local currency although this resulted in a 1%

increase in dollar sales.
> Asia Pacific flavor sales increased 4% in both local currency

and dollars while fragrance sales were flat in local currency with
an increase of 1% in dollars. Asia Pacific results in both
flavors and fragrances were influenced by ongoing weak-
ness in the Japanese economy as well as the Philippines and

Indonesia. Overall, sales in the region increased 2% in local

currency and 3% in dollars.
> Latin America sales declined 9% for the year, mainly due to

persistent economic weakness throughout much of the
region. Latin America fragrance sales declined 8% while fla-

vor sales declined 16%.
> India sales increased 9% in local currency, resulting in a

10% increase in dollars. The performance was led by an 11%

local currency increase in fragrance sales; local currency fla-

vor sales grew 7%.

In 2001, pro-forma sales decreased 1% in comparison to the
comparable 2000 sales; had exchange rates remained the same dur-
ing 2001 and 2000, such pro-forma sales would have been flat.
Regional sales performance for 2001 was as follows:
> Sales in North America increased 2% in comparison to the

prior year comparable sales. Flavor sales increased 7% over

2000 levels while fragrance sales declined 3%.

> Local currency sales in Europe decreased 1%, resulting in a
dollar decrease of 4% due to the stronger U.S. dollar. Local
currency fragrance sales in Europe decreased 3%, resulting
in a dollar decrease of 5%. Flavor sales in Europe were flat in
local currency although this resulted in a 3% decrease in
dollar sales.

> Sales in Asia Pacific increased 2% in local currency; however,
on translation, dollar sales declined 3%. Asia Pacific flavor
sales increased 3% in local currency although this resulted in a
dollar decline of 3%. Fragrance sales were flat in local currency
with a 5% decrease in dollars.

> Latin America sales were flat for the year, mainly due to eco-
nomic weakness in Brazil and Argentina. In the region, fra-
grance sales increased 2% although this growth was offset by
a decline of 6% in flavor sales.

> India sales increased 6% in both focal currency and dollars.
Fragrance sales increased 14% in local currency and 12%
in dollars while flavor sales were flat in both local currency
and dollars.

Although the Company's reported sales and earnings are
affected by the weakening or strengthening of the U.S. doltar, this
has not had a long-term effect on the underlying strength of the
Company's business.

The percentage relationship of cost of goods sold and other
operating expenses to reported sales is detailed in the following table.

2002 2001 2000

Cost of goods sold 57.3% 1  57.7% 56.9%
Research and development 1

expenses 8.0% | 7.3% 7.7%
Selling and administrative i

expenses 16.9% | 17.0% 17.7%




Cost of goods sold, which includes cost of materials and
internal manufacturing expenses, declined slightly in 2002 from
2001 levels. This decline is a result of improvement in product
mix, mainly due to the disposal of the non-core businesses, par-
tially offset by increased manufacturing expenses related to the
Company's implementation of SAP and related initiatives, and the
impact of the economic and currency disruption in Latin America
which impacted profitability in that region. Total SAP-related
costs included in manufacturing expenses approximated $1.7 in
2002; there were no similar expenses in 2001 or 2000. The
increase in cost of sales in 2001 compared to 2000 is primarily
attributable to the acquisition of BBA and unfavorable absorption
of manufacturing costs in North America due to poor sales per-
formance in that region.

Research and development expenses are for the develop-
ment of new and improved products, technical product support,
compliance with governmental regulations, and help in maintain-
ing relationships with customers who are often dependent on
technical advances. These activities contribute in a significant
way to the Company’s business. Research and development
expenses increased as a percentage of sales in 2002, consistent
with the Company’s plans to increase its investment in new
research initiatives; the Company anticipates these expenses will
approximate 8% of sales for the next several years. Research and
development expenses declined slightly as a percentage of sales
in 2001 as a result of the integration of the IFF and BBA research
efforts and facilities.

Selling and administrative expenses are necessary to sup-
port the Company's sales and operating levels. Selling and admin-
istrative expenses as a percentage of sales declined compared to
both 2001 and 2000 levels. The decline is a result of the savings
attributable to the integration of the Company's sales and adminis-
trative functions with those of BBA. In 2002, seliing and admin-
istrative expenses includes approximately $2.9 related to the
Company's implementation of SAP and related initiatives; there
were no such expenses in 2001 or 2000.

SAP costs included in manufacturing and selling and admin-
istrative expenses are expected to continue at approximately the
same level in 2003-2004 as the Company completes its imple-
mentation. These costs relate primarily to training and data conver-
sion and are expensed as incurred.

The percentage relationship of pro-forma cost of goods sold
and other operating expenses to pro-forma sales is detailed in the
following table. The pro-forma information is prepared as though
the Company and BBA had been combined as of January 1, 2000

and reflects the elimination of sales and operating results of the
non-core businesses.

Pro-forma Pro-forma Pro-forma
2002 2001 2000
Cost of goods sold 57.1% 56.1% 56.4%
Research and development
expenses 8.0% 7.6% 7.6%
Selling and administrative
expenses 16.9% 17.8% 18.6%

Pro-forma cost of sales as a percentage of pro-forma sales
increased in 2002 in comparison to 2001 as a result of a combina-
tion of product mix, the aforementioned SAP implementation costs
and the impact of the economic and currency disruption in Latin
America. Pro-forma cost of sales decreased as a percentage of
pro-forma sales in 2001 primarily as a result of savings on integra-
tion and closure of certain BBA manufacturing facilities.

Pro-forma research and development expenses as a per-
centage of pro-forma sales increased in 2002 in relation to both
2001 and 2000 as a result of the Company's announced plans to
increase its investment in research initiatives.

Pro-forma selling and administrative expenses declined as a
percentage of pro-forma sales in each of the years due to savings
attributable to the integration of IFF and BBA seiling and adminis-
trative functions.

Segment profit, excluding corporate and other unallocated
expenses, amortization of goodwill, and the effect of nonrecurring
charges, was $355.1 in 2002, $367.4 in 2001 and $289.7 in 2000.
BBA operations contributed $9.3 to segment profit, before amorti-
zation of goodwill and other intangibles, for the period from
November 3, 2000 through year-end. Pro-forma segment profit
for IFF and BBA combined in 2000 was $348.9. The Company
recorded nonrecurring charges of $11.7, $30.1, and $41.3 in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. Operating profit totaled $299.9,
$255.6 and $211.5 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Interest expense totaled $37.0, $70.4 and $25.1 in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. Pro-forma interest expense for
2000 was $81.2. Interest expense declined in 2002 as a result of
lower effective interest rates and reduced borrowing levels.
Interest expense in 2001 increased over 2000 and is directly
related to the debt incurred for the BBA acquisition. In 2000,
interest expense incurred in connection with the acquisition of
BBA was $10.6.
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Other (income) expense, net was $3.6 income in 2002, $2.6
income in 2001 and $2.3 expense in 2000. The increases in other
income in 2002 compared to 2001, and 2001 compared to 2000
were principally due to favorable exchange resuits; exchange gains
were $2.3 and $1.9 in 2002 and 2001, respectively, compared to
exchange losses of $1.9 in 2000,

The worldwide effective tax rate for 2002 was 34.0%, com-
pared to 38.2% for 2001 and 33.2% for 2000. The lower effective
tax rate in 2002 principally results from the discontinuance of good-
will amortization, which was not deductible for purposes of determi-
nation of the Company’s taxable income. The higher effective tax
rate in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily results from the non-
deductibility of the goodwill amortization for purposes of determin-
ing the Company’s taxable income. The Company anticipates that
its effective tax rate in 2003 will be in the range of 32.0%-32.5%.

On November 3, 2000, the Company acquired BBA, tota!
consideration paid, including transaction costs, was $970.0.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business
combination; the purchase price has been allocated to assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values at the date
of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated
value of tangible and identified intangible assets acquired was
recorded as goodwill. The Company completed final determination
of the purchase price during 2001 when it established accruals relat-
ing to employee separation costs, facility closure costs and other
actions relating to the integration of BBA into IFF. Such costs are a
component of the purchase accounting and do not directly impact
current earnings. The increase in goodwill and other intangible
assets between 2000 and 2001 resulted from further quantification
of certain liabilities assumed in connection with the merger, primarily
those associated with the integration of the BBA operations into the
Company; such costs were not accounted for at December 31, 2000.
More details on the BBA acquisition are contained in Note 3 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, goodwill and other intangi-
ble assets, net of accumulated amortization, totaled $782.7 and
$795.9, respectively. Amortization expense was $12.6 and $46.1
in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Effective January 1, 2002, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142 (FAS 142), Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.
FAS 142 eliminates the amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangibles and requires an evaluation of potential impairment upon
adoption, and at least annually thereafter. FAS 142 also prescribes
that other indefinite-lived intangibles be included with goodwill. In
2002, certain intangibles were reclassified as indefinite-lived intan-
gibles in accordance with the provisions of FAS 142. Adoption of
FAS 142 eliminated annual goodwill amortization expense of
$33.0. The Company completed its assessments during 2002

and concluded it has no impairment of goodwill or other intan-
gible assets on adoption or at December 31, 2002. Additional
details are contained in Note 7 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Movements in acquisition accounting accruals were as follows:

Employee- Asset-Related

Related and Other Total
Balance January 1, 2001 $ 4.1 $ 6.2 $10.3
Additional charges 41.0 25.0 66.0
Cash and other costs (31.3) (21.3) (52.6)
Balance December 31, 2001 13.8 9.9 23.7
Cash and other costs (7.8) (8.8) (16.6)
Balance December 31, 2002 $ 6.0 $ 1.1 $ 71

The BBA acquisition was initially financed through the
issuance of commercial paper. During 2001, the Company put in
place permanent debt financing. In 2002, the Company modified
portions of its debt structure. Additional details on borrow-
ing are contained in Note 9 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In October 2000, the Company announced a reorganization,
including management changes, consolidation of production facili-
ties and related actions. The pretax cost of actions taken in connec-
tion with the reorganization, including $11.7 $30.1 and $41.3 in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, is expected to approximate
$90.0 to $100.0 through the end of 2003. On completion, the
reorganization is expected to yield annual savings approximating
$25.0 to $30.0. A portion of the savings is expected to be rein-
vested in the business, although a substantial portion is expected
to contribute to improved earnings.

In June 1999, the Company undertook to close certain man-
ufacturing, distribution and sales facilities in all geographic regions
in which the Company operates. In connection with these actions,
the Company initiated two separate voluntary retirement incentive
programs for United States-based employees meeting certain
eligibility requirements. Those eligible employees who elected to
take the incentive received additional credit, for pension purposes,
in terms of age and service, as well as other benefits. During 2000,
approximately 150 employees accepted enhanced retirement bene-
fits under these two programs, resulting in nonrecurring pretax
charges of $23.8. In addition, during 2000, the Company recog-
nized additional nonrecurring charges of $17.5, essentially all of
which related to employee separation costs and other reorganiza-
tion activities.




Nonrecurring charges by region were as follows:

2002 2001

North America $ 56 $14.7
Europe 5.8 4.2
Asia Pacific 3 8.6
Latin America - 2.6
India Region - -
$11.7 $30.1

Nonrecurring charges recorded in 2000 were $41.3, essen-
tially all of which related to United States-based operations. There
were no significant non-cash related elements in the 2002, 2001 or
2000 charges. Approximately 700 employees have been affected
by the programs.

Movements in accruals related to nonrecurring charges were
as follows:

Employee- Asset-Related

Related and Other Total
Balance January 1, 2000 $ 96 $ 16 $11.2
Additional charges 371 49 413
Cash and other costs (22.3) (3.8) (26.1)
Balance December 31, 2000 24.4 2.0 26.4
Additional charges 10.1 20.0 30.1
Cash and other costs (27.5) (21.3) (48.8)
Balance December 31, 2001 7.0 7 7.7
Additional charges 4.3 7.4 11.7
Cash and other costs (7.9) (7.7) (15.8)
Balance December 31, 2002 $ 34 $ 4 $ 38

The balance of the accruals relating to acquisition account-
ing and the nonrecurring charges is expected to be utilized in 2003
in connection with the final decommissioning and disposal of
affected equipment and as severance obligations to affected
employees are satisfied.

In October 2001, the Company sold its formulated fruit and
vegetable preparation businesses in the United States and Brazil.
Sales for the business up to the date of dispoesition were approxi-
mately $23.0 with operating profit of approximately $2.2. In
connection with this transaction the Company recorded a non-
recurring charge of $7.4 related to employee separation and other
disposal costs. Proceeds from the sale, which were not material,
were used to reduce current borrowings.

In October 2001, the Company announced its intention to
explore strategic alternatives for its fruit and vegetable preparation
business in Europe. This business manufactures processed fruit
and other natural preparations used in a wide variety of foods,

including baked goods and dairy products. Annual sales and oper-
ating profit approximate $70.0 and $7.0, respectively. No final deci-
sion has been made as to which strategic alternative to pursue.

In December 2001, the Company sold its aroma chemicals
business located in Widnes, the United Kingdom. This business
was acquired as part of the BBA purchase. Sales for the business
up to the date of disposition were $36.7 with operating profit of
approximately $1.5. Proceeds from the sale, which were not mate-
rial, were used to reduce current borrowings. No gain or loss was
recognized as a result of this transaction.

The Company sold its concentrate business based in Oregon
in June 2002. Sales for the business up to the date of disposition
were $9.4; operating profit was not significant. In connection with
this transaction, the Company recorded a nonrecurring charge of
$4.3 related to employee separation and other disposal costs.
Proceeds from the sale, which were not material, were used to
reduce current borrowings.

NEW ACCCUNTING STANDARDS

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (FAS 133), Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. FAS 133 estab-
lishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instru-
ments, and for hedging activities. It requires that an entity recognize
all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of finan-
cial position and measure those instruments at fair value. The effect
of adopting this Standard was not material.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144
(FAS 144), Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived
Assets was issued in August 2001. FAS 144 establishes account-
ing and reporting standards for impairment of long-iived assets.
FAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2001 and in 2002, the Company adopted this standard without
material impact to reported results.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146
(FAS 148), Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities was issued in June 2002. FAS 146 establishes accounting
and reporting standards for exit or disposal activities initiated after
December 31, 2002, and requires such costs to be recognized when
the liability is incurred and not at project initiation. The Company wil
comply with the provisions of FAS 146,

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148
(FAS 148), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure was issued in December 2002. FAS 148 provides
alternate methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair
value based method of accounting for stock-based employee com-
pensation. The Company has elected to continue to use the intrin-
sic methed of accounting for stock-based awards to employees.
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No compensation expense has been recognized other than for
restricted stock awards.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpre-
tation No. 45, Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, and No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities. The Company has evaluated these interpretations and
does not believe they apply to the Company.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled
$15.2 at December 31, 2002 compared to $48.9 and $129.2 at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Short-term invest-
ments are high-quality, readily marketable instruments. Working
capital totaled $507.3 at year-end 2002, compared to $336.1 and
$409.9 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively; the 2000
amount excludes commercial paper borrowings used to finance the
BBA acquisition to the extent they were later refinanced with long-
term debt. Gross additions to property, plant and equipment were
$81.8, $52.0 and $60.7 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and
are expected to approximate $85.0 in 2003.

Long-term debt was $1,007.1 and $939.4 at December 31,
2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively. Long-term debt
includes $63.5 and $8.3 of deferred interest rate swap gains at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. In July 2002, the
Company entered into a five-year Euro 350.0 (approximately $350.0
at December 31, 2002) multi-currency revolving credit agreement.
The Company cancelled and repaid all borrowings under an existing
Euro 140.0 facility. Also in July 2002, the Company exercised an
option under its $500.0 U.S. dollar revolving credit facility and can-
celled the $200.0 364 day portion of that agreement. The remaining
portion of the facility, which serves as backstop for the Company's
commercial paper program, continues until September 2006. There
have been no borrowings under this facility. The Company compen-
sates the banks participating in this credit facility in the form of fees, the
amounts of which are not significant. At December 31, 2002, the
Company’s outstanding commercial paper totaled $38.0 at an aver-
age interest rate of 1.6% compared to $204.2 at December 31, 2001
at an average interest rate of 2.9%. Commercial paper maturities did
not extend beyond January 21, 2003.

During 2002, the Company entered into agreements for the
sale and leaseback of its Hazlet and South Brunswick, New Jersey
facilities. Under the terms of the sale, the Company sold the land,
building and associated improvements at these facilities to an unre-
lated third party for $48.0 in cash. The net book value of these

assets approximated $20.3. The gain realized on the sale, approxi-
mating $26.7, has been deferred and will be credited to income
over the 22-year lease term. At December 31, 2002, the unamor-
tized portions of the deferred gain of $24.8 and $1.2 are included in
the balance sheet captions Retirement and other liabilities and
Other current liabilities, respectively. The lease agreements provide
for renewal options of up to 30 years. Payments under the leases
approximate $4.2 annually and commenced in July 2002. Total
lease payments for 2002 were $2.1 and for 2003 to 2007 are $4.2
annually; the aggregate (ease obligation is $92.4. The leases are
classified as operating leases.

In April 2000, the Company announced a plan to repurchase
up to 7.5 million shares of its common stock. In September 2000,
the Company announced a plan to increase its share repurchase
program by $100.0. The Company completed the April 2000 pro-
gram during 2001 and the September 2000 program during 2002,
On October 22, 2002, the Company's Board of Directors author-
ized a new share repurchase program of $100.0, which is expected
to be completed over the next two years. Under these plans, the
Company purchased $72.3, $71.2 and $201.0 of treasury stock in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Repurchases were made from
time to time on the cpen market or through private transactions.
The repurchased shares are available for use in connection with
the Company's employee benefit plans and for other general cor-
porate purposes.

The Company anticipates that all financing requirements
will be funded from operations and credit facilities currently in
place. Cash flows from operations are sufficient to fund the
Company's anticipated capital spending, dividends and other
requirements including debt reduction; the Company anticipates
reducing debt by approximately $100.0 in 2003. The Company
may dispose of additional non-core assets; any related proceeds
will be used primarily to reduce debt.

The dividend per share in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was, respec-
tively, $.60, $.60 and $1.29. In September 2000, the Board of
Directors reduced the Company's quarterly dividend by 60%, to
$.15 per share, beginning with the fourth quarter 2000 dividend.
The dividend per share has not changed since that date. The
Company paid dividends totaling $56.8, $57.6 and $155.5 in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

The cumulative translation adjustment component of
Accumulated other comprehensive income was ($138.2) at
December 31, 2002, compared to ($156.3) at December 31, 2001.
The change results principally from the weakening of the U.S. dollar




against the Euro. The Minimum pension liability adjustment compo-
nent of Accumulated other comprehensive income was ($75.0) at
December 31, 2002 compared to ($20.0) at December 31, 2001.
This change reflects lower pension asset values coupled with a
reduction in the discount rate assumptions used to calculate pen-
sion liabilities. The Accumulated gain on derivatives qualifying as
hedges was $0.7 at December 31, 2002 compared to an Accumu-
lated loss of ($2.3) at December 31, 2001,

Compliance with existing governmental requirements regu-
lating the discharge of materials into the environment has not mate-
rially affected the Company’s operations, earnings or competitive
position. In 2002, the Company spent approximately $2.7 on capital
projects and about $13.4 in operating expenses and governmental
charges for the purpose of complying with such regulations.
Expenditures for these purposes will continue for the foreseeable
future. In addition, the Company is party to a number of proceed-
ings brought under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act or similar state statutes. It is
expected that the impact of any judgments in or voluntary settle-
ments of such proceedings will not be material to the Company’s
financial condition, results of operations or tiquidity.

MARKET RISK

The Company is exposed to market risk from foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and commodity price fluctuations. The
Company evaluates and manages volatility relating to these expo-
sures on a global basis to take advantage of netting opportunities
that may exist. Identified net exposures are managed employing a
number of technigues including but not limited to borrowings in
local currencies and the use of certain derivative instruments.

The Company operates on a global basis and, accordingly, is
exposed to currency fluctuation related to the manufacture and
sale of its products in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The
major foreign currencies involve the markets in the European
Union, Mexico, Brazil, China, Indonesia and Japan, although all
regions in the world are subject to foreign currency fluctuations
versus the U.S. doliar and other cross-currency rates. The Company
actively monitors its foreign currency exposures in all major markets
in which it operates, and employs a variety of techniques to miti-
gate the impact of exchange rate fluctuations, including foreign
currency hedging activities. The Company enters into foreign cur-
rency forward contracts with the objective of reducing exposure to
cash flow volatility associated with foreign currency receivables

and payables, and with anticipated purchases of certain raw mate-
rials used in operations. The notional amount and maturity dates of
such contracts match those of the underlying transactions. At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had outstanding for-
eign currency forward contracts with notional amounts approximat-
ing $131.4 and $97.3, respectively. The Company has designated
these contracts as qualified fair value and cash flow hedges as
appropriate. Accordingly, the effective portion of any gain or loss
on a derivative instrument reported as a cash flow hedge is
reported as a component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income and recognized in earnings in the same period or periods
during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The
Company had no ineffective foreign currency forward contracts at
December 31, 2002 or 2001.

The Company employs various interest rate swaps and debt
issuances with the objective of managing and optimizing its inter-
est rate exposure. The Company has entered into a series of swaps
for a $700.0 notional amount which effectively converts the fixed
6.45% coupon interest rate to a variable short-term rate based
upon the London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus an interest
markup. During 2001 and 2002, the Company periodically
amended the swaps, which changed the short-term LIBOR basis
and the related spread. As a result of market conditions and
changes in the value of the swaps, the counterparty paid the
Company $56.5, including accrued interest of $6.5 in 2002, and
$19.9, including accrued interest of $3.3 in 2001. The swap gains
are deferred, classified as a separate element of long-term debt
and amortized to income as a reduction in interest expense over
the remaining term of the debt. As a result of these transactions, at
December 31, 2002, the effective interest rate on the 6.45% Notes
approximated 3.4% compared to 3.7% at December 31, 2001. In
2002, the Company entered into a series of swaps to convert its
long-term Japanese Yen borrowings from fixed-rate to short-term
Japanese Yen LIBOR rates. There was no cash settlement for
these swaps, which effectively convert the 1.74% and 2.45% long-
term Yen notes to a blended effective rate of 1.7%. All interest rate
swaps are designated as qualified fair value hedges; there
were no ineffective interest rate swaps at December 31, 2002 or
December 31, 2001.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
use judgement and to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses; actual results
may differ from such estimates. The diversity of the Company’s
products, customers, geographic operations, sources of supply
and markets reduces the risk that any one event would have a
severe impact on the Company's operating results. The Company
recognizes revenue when products are shipped and title and risk of
loss transfer to the customer. The greatest complexity of the
Company's business is in the area of the research and develop-
ment and creation of new products, for which all costs are
expensed as incurred.
Those areas requiring the greatest degree of management
judgement or deemed most critical to the Company’s financial
reporting involve:
> The periodic assessment of potential impairment of intangi-
ble assets acquired in business combinations;
> Recoverability and realization of assets, most notably in
lesser developed areas of the world where fluctuating cur-
rencies and frequently unsettled economic conditions can
create uncertainty;

> The ongoing assessment of the valuation of inventory, given
the large number of natural ingredients employed, the quality
of which may be diminished over time;

> The determination of financial instruments employed as
effective hedges of cash flows or market risk exposures; and

> The evaluation of potential environmental liabilities, where fre-
quently changing rules and regulations require constant
reassessment of related practices as well as underlying costs.

Management believes that full consideration has been given
to all relevant circumstances that the Company may be currently
subject to, and the financial statements accurately reflect manage-
ment’s best estimate of the results of operations, financial condi-
tion and cash flows of the Company for the years presented.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE
SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

Statements in this Annual Report, which are not historical
facts or information, are “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Such forward-looking statements are based on management'’s rea-
sonable current assumptions and expectations. Such forward-
looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and other factors,
which may cause the actual results of the Company to be materially
different from any future results expressed or implied by such for-
ward-looking statements, and there can be no assurance that actual
results will not differ materially from management’s expectations.
Such factors include, among others, the following: general eco-
nomic and business conditions in the Company's markets, including
economic and political uncertainties; interest rates; the price and
availability of raw materials; the Company's ability to implement its
business strategy, including the achievement of anticipated cost
savings, profitability and growth targets; the impact of currency fluc-
tuation or devaluation in the Company's principal foreign markets
and the success of the Company's hedging and risk management
strategies; the impact of possible pension funding obligations and
increased pension expense on the Company's cash flow and results
of operations; and effect of legal and regulatory proceedings, as
well as restrictions imposed on the Company, its operations or its
representatives by foreign governments.

The Company intends its forward-looking statements to
speak only as of the time of such statements and does not under-
take to update or revise them as more information becomes avail-
able or to reflect changes in expectations, assumptions or results.




REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of International Flavors & Fragrances Inc. have been prepared by manage-
ment in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and necessarily include amounts that
are based on management’s best estimates and judgement. The audit report on the Company's financial statements by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, is based on the result of their audits, which were performed in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards.

The Company maintains an internal control structure and related systems, policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded and transactions are properly recorded and executed in accordance with management's authori-
zation so that the accounting records can be relied upon for the preparation of financial statements. The Company's control system is
enhanced through a formal Code of Conduct that establishes standards for professional conduct and integrity for employees worldwide.
The Company also has an internal audit function that evaluates and formally reports to management and the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors on the adequacy and effectiveness of controls, policies and procedures.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed entirely of non-employee directors. The Committee meets periodically
and independently throughout the year with management, the internal auditors and the independent accountants to discuss the
Company's internal accounting controls, auditing and financial reporting matters. The internal auditors and independent accountants have
unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.

It is management’s opinion that IFF's policies and procedures and the system of internal controls currently in place provide reason-
able assurance that operations are managed in a responsible and professional manner and with the highest standard of business conduct.

{ Lt w«z@m

Richard A. Goldstein Douglas J. Wetmore
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of international Flavors & Fragrances inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statement of income, cash flows and
shareholders’ equity present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of International Flavors & Fragrances Inc. and its sub-
sidiaries at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluat-
ing the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," effective January 1, 2002 and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
“‘Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,' effective January 1, 2001.

Edﬁ%@%@@wa SZL 5P
New York, New York
January 27, 2003



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Year Ended December 31,

International Fiavors & Fragrances Inc.

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
Research and development expenses

Selling and administrative expenses

Amortization

Nonrecurring charges
Interest expense

Other (income) expense, net

Income before taxes on income
Taxes on income
Net income

Net income per share - hasic
Net income per share - diluted

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2002 2001 2000
$1,809,249 $1,843,766 $1,462,795
1,035,835 1,063,433 831,653

144,027 135,248 112,671
305,156 313,335 258,653
12,632 46,089 7,032
11,737 30,069 41,273
37,036 70,424 25,072
(3,591) (2,609) 2,314
1,542,832 1,655,989 1,278,668
266,417 187,777 184,127
90,473 71,775 61,122
$ 175,944 $ 116,002 $ 123,005
2002 2001 2000
$1.86 $1.21 $1.22
$1.84 $1.20 $1.22




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

International Flavors & Fragrances Inc.

{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) December 31,
ASSETS 2002 2001
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14858 $ 48,521
Short-term investments 307 384
Receivables:
Trade 327,306 328,858
Altowance for doubtful accounts (12,933) (10,835)
Other 24,234 22,335
Inventories 421,603 415,984
Deferred income taxes 67,176 77,449
Prepaid expenses 24,198 13,665
Total Current Assets 866,748 896,361
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 520,499 532,473
Goodwill, net 642,655 648,975
intangible Assets, net 140,048 146,945
Other Assets 62,743 43,297
Total Assets $2,232,694 $2,268,051
December 31,
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2002 2001
Current Liabilities:
Bank loans and current portion of long-term debt $ 11684 $ 23718
Commercial paper 37,979 204,229
Accounts payable 104,007 85,659
Accrued payrolls and bonuses 36,250 39,227
Dividends payable 14,138 14,215
Income taxes 38,496 49 841
Other current liabilities 116,943 143,327
Total Current Liabilities 359,497 560,214
Other Liabilities:
Long-term debt 1,007,085 939,404
Deferred income taxes - 44 553
Retirement and other liabilities 291,434 199,710
Total Other Liabilities 1,298,519 1,183,667
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 17}
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common stock 12%¢ par value; authorized 500,000,000 shares; issued 115,761,840 shares 14,470 14,470
Capital in excess of par value 109,735 126,170
Restricted stock {5,723) (1,440)
Retained earnings 1,382,539 1,263,344
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Cumulative translation adjustment (138,175) (156,266)
Accumulated gains/{losses) on derivatives qualifying as hedges (net of tax) 733 (2,261)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (net of tax) (75,038) (20,009)
1,288,541 1,224,008
Treasury stock, at cost — 21,507,668 shares in 2002 and 20,996,954 shares in 2001 (712,876) (698,851)
Note receivable from officer {987) (987)
Total Shareholders' Equity 574,678 524,170
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $2,232,694 $2,268,051

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

International Flavors & Fragrances Inc,

Year Ended December 31,

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 175,044 $ 116,002 $ 123,005
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operations:
Depreciation and amortization 84,458 123,493 69,344
Deferred income taxes (6,381) (18,113) (30,496)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Current receivables 15,452 8,925 15,261
Inventories 17,259 (1,207) 64,591
Current payables (27,623} (20,076) 22,017
Other, net (15,765) (27,519) 5,388
Net cash provided by operations 243,344 181,505 269,110
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from investments 257 8,250 1,566
Purchases of investments (176) (19,786) (1,111)
Acquisition of minority interest (11,791) - -
Investments in acquired businesses, net of cash received - - (953,295)
Additions to property, plant and equipment (81,815) {52,016) (60,696)
Proceeds from disposal of assets 64,634 14,900 11,301
Net cash used in investing activities (28,891) (48,652) (1,002,235)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash dividends paid to shareholders (56,826) (57,618) (155,502)
Net change in bank loans (14,774) (13,088) 5,164
Net change in commercial paper outstanding (166,250) (605,123) 746,152
Proceeds from long-term debt 282,329 580,545 413,747
Repayments of long-term debt (251,837) (49,705) (1,903)
Proceeds from issuance of stock under stock option and
employee stock purchase plans 26,579 6,842 1,387
Purchase of treasury stock (72,273) (71,234) (200,953)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (250,052) (209,381) 808,092
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1,936 (3,820) (8,233)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (33,663) (80,348) 66,734
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 48,521 128,869 62,135
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 14,858 $ 48,521 $ 128,869

See Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Capital in
excess of
par value

Common
stock

Restricted

stock earnings

Accumulated
other

Retained comprehensive

income

tnternational Flavors & Fragrances Inc.

Treasury stock
Shares

Cost

Note
receivable Total
from comprehensive
officer income

Balance at
January 1, 2000
Net income
Cumulative translation
adjustment
Total comprehensive
income

Cash dividends declared
Stock options
Reacquired shares
Balance at
December 31, 2000
Net income
Cumulative translation
adjustment
Accumulated losses on
derivatives qualifying
as hedges (net of tax)
Minimum pension
liability adjustment
(net of tax)
Total comprehensive
income
Cash dividends declared
Stock options
Reacquired shares
Restricted stock award
Amortization
Balance at
December 31, 2001
Net income
Cumulative translation
adjustment
Accumulated gains on
derivatives qualifying
as hedges (net of tax)
Minimum pension
liabifity adjustment
{net of tax)
Total comprehensive
income

Cash dividends declared
Stock options
Reacquired shares
Restricted stock award

Amortization
Balance at

December 31, 2002

$14,470 $134480 $ - $1,211,790

123,005

(130,234)
(1,439)

$ (57,135)

(20,443)

(10,939,915) $(445,108)

79,297
(7,475,178)

2,826

(200,953)

$

$123,005
(20,443)

$102,562

14,470 133,041 - 1,204,561

(77,578)

(18,335,796}

(643,235)

116,002

(57,219)
(3,941)
(2,930) (3,065)
1,625

(78,688)

(2,261}

(20,009)

187,056
(3,019,100)
170,886

9,623

5,005

(71,234)

$116,002

(78,688)

(2,261)

(20,009)

$ 15,044

(987)

14,470 126,170  {1,440) 1,263,344

(178,536)

(20,996,954)

(698,851}

(987)

175,944

(66,749)

(15,652)
(783) (5,884)
1,601

18,091

2,994

(65,029)

1,682,486
(2,293,200)
200,000

51,581
(72,273)
6,667

$175,044

18,091
2,994

(65,029)

$142,000

$14.470 $109,735 $(5,723) $1,382,539

$(212,480)

(21,507,668) $(712,876)

$(987)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATICNS AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates Preparation of financial statements in con-
formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and accompanying disclosures. These esti-
mates are based on management's best knowledge of current
events and actions the Company may undertake in the future.
Actual results may ultimately differ from estimates, although man-
agement does not believe such changes will materially affect the
financial statements in any individual year.

Nature of Operations The Company is a leading creator
and manufacturer of flavors and fragrances used by others to
impart or improve flavor or fragrance in a wide variety of consumer
products. The Company's products are sold principally to manu-
facturers of perfumes and cosmetics, hair and other personal care
products, soaps and detergents, cleaning products, dairy, meat
and other processed foods, beverages, snacks and savory foods,
confectionery, sweet and baked goods, and pharmaceutical and
oral care products.

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of the Company and all subsidiaries.

Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognized when prod-
ucts are shipped and title and risk of [oss transfer to the customer.

Foreign Currency Translation The assets and liabilities of
non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end
exchange rates. Income and expense items are translated at aver-

. age exchange rates during the year. Cumulative translation adjust-

ments are shown as a separate component of Shareholders’ Equity.

Through December 31, 2000, for certain subsidiaries that
operated in U.S. dollars, or that operated in a highly inflationary
environment, inventory and property, plant and equipment were
translated using the exchange rates at the time of acquisition. All
other assets and liabilities were translated at year-end exchange
rates. Except for inventories charged to cost of goods sold and
depreciation, which were remeasured for historical rates of
exchange, all income and expense items were translated at aver-
age exchange rates. Gains and losses as a result of remeasure-
ments were included in income.

Research and Development All costs associated with
research and development are expensed as incurred.

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (gen-
erally on an average basis) or market.

International Flavors & Fragrances Inc,

Cash Equivalents Cash equivalents include highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less at date of purchase.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and equip-
ment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis, principally over the following estimated useful lives:
buildings and improvements, 10 to 40 years; machinery, equipment
and software, 3 to 10 years; and leasehold improvements, the esti-
mated life of the improvements or the remaining term of the lease,
whichever is shorter.

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment
when events or changes in business conditions indicate that their
full carrying value may not be recovered. An estimate of undis-
counted future cash flows produced by an asset or group of assets
is compared to the carrying value to determine whether an impair-
ment exists. If assets are determined to be impaired, the loss is
measured based on an estimate of fair value using various valuation
techniques, including a discounted estimate of future cash flows.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets ldentifiable intan-
gible assets include patents, trademarks and other intellectual
property valued at acquisition through independent appraisals, and
are amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from
7 to 20 years. Through December 31, 2001, goodwill arising from
business acquisitions was amortized on a straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life, which was generally 20 years.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (FAS 142), Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets. FAS 142 eliminates the amortization
of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles and requires an evalua-
tion of potential impairment upon adoption, and at least annually
thereafter. FAS 142 also prescribes that other indefinite-lived intan-
gibles be included with goodwill.

Fair values for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles are
determined based on discounted cash flows, market multiples or
appraised values, as appropriate.

Income Taxes Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of
temporary differences between the amount of assets and liabilities
recognized for financial reporting purposes and such amounts rec-
ognized for tax purposes, based on tax laws as currently enacted.
Additional taxes which would result from distributions by subsidiary
companies to the parent are provided to the extent such dividends
are anticipated. No provision is made for additional taxes on undis-
tributed earnings of subsidiary companies that are intended to be
permanently invested in such subsidiaries. As a result, no income
tax is attributable to the currency translation component of other
comprehensive income.




Retirement Benefits Current service costs of retirement
plans and postretirement health care and life insurance benefits are
accrued currently. Prior service costs resulting from improvements
in these plans are amortized over periods ranging from 10 to
20 years.

Financial Instruments Effective January 1, 2001, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 133 (FAS 133), Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. FAS 133, as amended, requires that every
derivative instrument be recorded in the balance sheet as either an
asset or liability, measured at its fair value. The cumulative effect of
adoption of FAS 133 did not result in a material impact on the
Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

It is the Company's policy to enter into derivative instruments
with terms that match the underlying exposure being hedged. As
such, the Company's derivative instruments are considered highly
effective and the net gain or loss from hedge ineffectiveness was
not material.

The Company's derivative instruments that qualify for hedge
accounting are primarily designated as either fair value hedges or
cash flow hedges. For fair value hedges, changes in fair value of the
derivative as well as the offsetting changes in fair value of the hedged
item are recognized in earnings each period. For cash flow hedges,
changes in fair value of the derivative are recorded in other compre-
hensive income and are recognized in earnings when the offsetting
effect of the hedged item is also recognized in earnings.

Risks and Uncertainties The diversity of the Company’s
products, customers and geographic operations significantly
reduces the risk that a severe impact will occur in the near term as
a result of changes in its customer base, competition, sources of
supply or markets. It is unlikely that any one event would have a
severe impact on the Company's operating results.

Software Costs The Company capitalizes direct internal and
external development costs associated with internal-use software.
Neither preliminary evaluation costs nor costs associated with the
software after implementation are capitalized.

Shipping and Handling Costs Net sales include shipping
and handling charges billed to customers. Cost of goods sold
include all costs incurred in connection with shipping and handling.

New Accounting Standards Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 144 (FAS 144), Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-lived Assets, was issued in August 2001.
FAS 144 establishes accounting and reporting standards for
impairment of long-lived assets. FAS 144 is effective for fiscal years

beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted this
standard without material impact to reported results.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146
(FAS 148), Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities was issued in June 2002. FAS 146 establishes account-
ing and reporting standards for exit or disposal activities initiated
after December 31, 2002, and requires such costs to be recog-
nized when the liability is incurred and not at project initiation. The
Company will comply with the provisions of FAS 146.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148
{(FAS 148), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure was issued in December 2002, FAS 148 provides
alternate methods of transition for a voluntary change to fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based employee compen-
sation. The Company has elected to continue to use the intrinsic
method of accounting for stock-based awards to employees. No
compensation expense has been recognized other than for
restricted stock awards.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Inter-
pretation No. 45, Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, and No. 46, Consclidation of
Variable Interest Entities. The Company has evaluated these
interpretations and does not believe they apply to the Company.

Net Income Per Share Net income per share is based on
the weighted average number of shares outstanding. A reconcilia-
tion of the number of shares used in the computations of basic and
diluted net income per share is as follows:

Number of Shares

(SHARES IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2000
Basic 94,511 95,770 101,073
Dilution under stock plans 1,362 1,049 20
Diluted 95,873 96,818 101,093

Net income used in the computation of basic and diluted net
income per share is not affected by the assumed issuance of stock
under the Company’s stock plans.

Options to purchase 3,506,414, 4,138,020, and 5,430,857
shares were outstanding in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, but
were not included in the computation of diluted net income per
share because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the
average market price of the common shares in the respective years.

Stock Plans At December 31, 2002, the Company had
stock-based compensation plans which are described more fully in
Note 12. The Company applies the recognition and measurement
principles of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
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Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations
in accounting for these plans. No compensation expense for
employee stock options is reflected in net earnings, as all options
granted under such plans had an exercise price not less than the
market value of the common stock on the date of the grant. Net
income includes compensation expense related to restricted stock.
The following table illustrates the effect on net income and net
income per share if the Company had applied the fair value recog-
nition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS

EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2002 2001 2000
Net income, as reported $175,944 1 $116,002 $123,0056
Deduct:
Total stock-based employee
compensation expense
determined under fair
value method for all
stock option awards, net
of related tax effects 16,008 14,092 11,957
Pro-forma net income $159,936 | $101,910 $111,048
Net income per share:
Basic - as reported $1.86 $1.21 $1.22
Basic - pro-forma $1.69 $1.06 $1.10
Diluted - as reported $1.84 $1.20 $1.22
Diluted - pro-forma $1.67 $1.05 $1.10

These pro-forma amounts may not be representative of future
disclosures because the estimated fair value of stock options is
amortized to expense over the vesting period, and additional options
may be granted in future years.

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to
the prior years' financial statements to conform to 2002 classifications.

NOTE 2. NONRECURRING CHARGES

In October 2000, the Company announced a reorganization
including management changes, consolidation of production facili-
ties and related actions.

In June 1999, the Company undertook to close certain man-
ufacturing, distribution and sales facilities in all geographic
regions in which the Company operates.

In connection with these actions, the Company initiated two
separate voluntary retirement incentive programs for United States-
based employees meeting certain eligibility requirements. During
2000, approximately 150 employees accepted enhanced retirement
benefits under these two programs, resulting in nonrecurring pretax
charges of $23.8 million. In addition, during 2000, the Company

recognized additional nonrecurring charges of $17.5 million, essen-
tially all of which related to employee separation costs and other
reorganization activities.

Nonrecurring charges by region were as follows:

(DOLLARS {N THOUSANDS) 2002 2001
North America $ 5565 $14,722
Europe 5814 4172
Asia Pacific 358 8,542
Latin America - 2,633
India Region - -

$11,737 $30,069

Nonrecurring charges in 2000 were $41.3 million, essentially
all of which related to United States-based operations. There were
no significant non-cash related elements in the 2002, 2001 or
2000 charges.

Movements in accruals related to these charges were
as foliows:

Asset-

Employee- Related
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) Related and Other Total
Balance January 1, 2000 $ 9622 $ 1586 $11,208
Additional charges 37,085 4178 41,273
Cash and other costs (22,338) (3,711) (26,049)
Balance December 31, 2000 24,379 2,053 26,432
Additional charges 10,083 19,086 30,069
Cash and other costs (27,474) (21,294) (48,768)
Balance December 31, 2001 6,988 745 7,733
Additional charges 4,340 7,397 11,737
Cash and other costs (7,899) (7,721) (15,620)
Balance December 31,2002 $ 3429 $ 421 $ 3,850

The balance of the accruals is expected to be utilized in
2003 in connection with the final decommissioning and disposal of
affected equipment and as severance obligations to affected
employees are satisfied. Approximately 700 employees have been
affected by the programs.

NOTE 3. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

On November 3, 2000, the Company acquired BBA,; total
consideration paid, including transaction costs, approximated
$970.0 million. BBA operating results are included in the Company's
consolidated results from November 3, 2000.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business
combination; the purchase price has been allocated to assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values at the date
of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated



value of tangible and identified intangible assets acquired was
recorded as goodwill. Other intangible assets include patents, trade-
marks and other intellectual property owned or developed by BBA.
The Company completed final determination of the purchase price
during 2001 when it established accruals relating to employee sepa-
ration costs, facility closure costs and other actions relating to the
integration of BBA into IFF. Such costs are a component of the pur-
chase accounting and do not directly impact current earnings.

As a result of finalizing acquisition accounting during 2001,
the Company increased tangible assets by $5.2 million, goodwill by
$105.0 million and decreased intangible assets by $22.8 million.

The following unaudited pro-forma results of operations give
effect to the BBA acquisition as if it had occurred as of January 1,
2000 and results reflect the final acquisition accounting adjustments
completed in 2001.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2000
Net sales $1,880,612
Net income 80,953
Net income per share — basic $0.80
Net income per share — diluted $0.80
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
Allocation of purchase price:
Fair value of assets acquired, including goodwill,

net of cash $1,253,044
Cash paid for common stock and transaction costs (970,000)
Liabilities assumed $ 283,044

Movements in acquisition accounting accruals were as follows:

nonrecurring charge of $7.4 million related to employee separation
and other disposal costs. Proceeds from the sale, which were not
material, were used to reduce current borrowings.

In December 2001, the Company sold its aroma chemicals
business located in Widnes, the United Kingdom. This business was
acquired as part of the BBA purchase. Sales for the business up to
the date of disposition were $36.7 million with operating profit of
approximately $1.5 million. Proceeds from the sale, which were not
material, were used to reduce current borrowings. No gain or loss
was recognized as a result of this transaction.

The Company sold its concentrate business based in
Oregon in June 2002, Sales for the business up to the date of dis-
position were $9.4 million; operating profit was not significant. In
connection with this transaction, the Company recorded a non-
recurring charge of $4.3 million related to employee separation
and other disposal costs. Proceeds from the sale, which were not
material, were used to reduce current borrowings.

NCTE 4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Marketable securities are included in cash equivalents or
short-term investments, as appropriate. At both December 31,
2002 and 2001, marketable securities totaling $0.1 million were
available for sale and recorded at fair value that approximated cost.
Realized gains and losses on the sale of marketable securities
were not material.

NOTE 5. INVENTORIES

December 31,

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001
Raw materials $222,161 | $212,270
Employee- R:;st:: Work in process 12,680 10,858
(DOLLARS {N THOUSANDS) Related and Other Total Finished goods 186,762 192,861
Balance January 1, 2001 $ 4103 $ 6230 $10,333 $421,603 | $415,984
Additional charges 41,012 24,961 65,973
Cash and other costs {(31,259) (21,325) (52,584) NOTE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Balance December 31, 2001 13,856 9,866 23,722
Cash and other costs (7,850) (8,797)  (16,647) December 31,
Balance December 31,2002 $ 6,006 $ 1,069 $ 7075 (.o ars v HousANDS) 2002 2001
Land $ 35249 $ 36747
The balance of the accruals is expected to be utilized in  Buildings and improvements 221,899 278,603
2003 in connection with the disposal of affected equipment and ~ Machinery, equipment and software 630,252 | 620,116
facilities, and as severance obligations to affected employees Construction in progress 62814 40,164
are satisfied. 950,214 975,630
In October 2001, the Company sold its formulated fruit and ~ Accumulated depreciation 429,715 | 443,157
vegetable preparation businesses in the United States and Brazil. $520,499 | $532473

Sales for the business up to the date of disposition were approxi-
mately $23.0 million with operating profit of approximately $2.2 mil-
lion. In connection with this transaction the Company recorded a
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NOTE 7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted FAS 142;
adoption eliminated annual goodwill amortization expense of approxi-
mately $33.0 million. FAS 142 also prescribes that other indefinite-
lived intangibles be included with goodwill. In 2002, certain intangibles
were reclassified as indefinite-lived intangibles in accordance with
the provisions of FAS 142. The following tables reflect the reclassi-
fication of other indefinite-lived intangibles from Trademarks and other
to Goodwiil on adoption of FAS 142 and the net income per share
effect of this change for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31,
2002 was $12.8 million; estimated annual amortization from 2003
to 2006 is $12.6 million and $11.3 million in 2007.

During 2002, the Company completed its assessment of the
impact of adopting the impairment provisions of this standard, and
concluded it has no impairment of goodwill at this time.

December 31, 2002

Gross Accumulated
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) carrying value amortization
Goodwill $684,189 $41,534
Other indefinite-lived intangibles 19,200 1,184
Trademarks and other 149,786 27,754
Total : $853,175 $70,472

December 31, 2001

Gross Accumulated
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) carrying value amortization
Goodwil $690,509 $41,534
Trademarks and other 163,251 16,306
Total $853,760 $57,84O

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS

Year ended December 31,

EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2002 2001
Reported net income $175,944 | $116,002
Add back: Goodwill amortization - 32,774
Adjusted net income $175,944 | $148,776
Basic Net Income Per Share

Reported net income $1.86 $1.21
Goodwill amortization - 0.34
Adjusted net income $1.86 $1.55
Diluted Net Income Per Share '

Reported net income $1.84 $1.20
Goodwill amortization - 0.34
Adjusted net income $1 .81' $1.54

NOTE 8. SALE AND LEASEBACK TRANSACTION

During 2002, the Company entered into agreements for the
sale and leaseback of its Hazlet and South Brunswick, New Jersey
facilities. Under the terms of the sale, the Company sold the land,
building and associated improvements at these facilities to an
unrelated third party for $48.0 million in cash. The net book value of
these assets approximated $20.3 million. The gain realized on the
sale, approximating $26.7 million, has been deferred and will be
credited to income over the 22-year lease term. At December 31,
2002, the unamortized portions of the deferred gain of $24.8 million
and $1.2 million are included in the balance sheet captions Retirement
and other liabilities and Other current liabilities, respectively. The
lease agreements provide for renewal options of up to 30 years.
Payments under the leases approximate $4.2 million annually and
commenced in July 2002. Total lease payments for 2002 were
$2.1 million and for 2003 to 2007 are $4.2 million annually; the
aggregate lease obligation is $92.4 million. The leases are classified
as operating leases.

NOTE 9. BORROWINGS

Debt consists of the following at December 31:

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) Rate Waturities 2002 2001
Commercial paper (U.S.) $ 37979 $ 204,229
Bank loans 10,979 21,916
Current portion of

tong-term debt 705 1,800
Total current debt 49,663 227,945
U.S. dollars 6.45% 2006 699,112 698,800
Euro facility 4.79% 2005-06 106,018 101,500
Japanese Yen notes  2.45% 2008-11 126,824 115,300
Japanese Yen notes  1.74% 2005 10,012 9,100
Other 2004-06 1,587 6,404

943,653 931,104

Deferred realized

gains on interest

rate swaps 57,868 15,571
FAS 133 adjustment 5,664 (7,271)
Total long-term debt 1,007,085 938,404
Total debt $1,056,748 | $1,167,349

The Company utilizes commercial paper to supplement long-
term borrowings. At December 31, 2002, outstanding commercial
paper had an effective interest rate of 1.6% compared to 2.9% at
December 31, 2001. Commercial paper maturities did not extend
beyond January 21, 2003.



In July 2002, the Company entered into a five-year
Euro 350 million (approximately $350.0 million at December 31,
2002), multi-currency revolving credit facility agreement. The
Company cancelled and repaid all borrowings under an existing
Euro 140 million credit facility.

In May 2001, the Company issued $700.0 million of 6.45%
Notes; the Notes mature May 15, 2006. In November 2001, the
Company issued Yen 15.15 billion in seven-year and ten-year notes.

The Company reduced its U.S. revolving credit agreement
to $500.0 million at December 31, 2001 from $1,300.0 million at
December 31, 2000. This revolving credit agreement was com-
posed of a $200.0 million 364-day facility and a $300.0 million
five-year facility. On July 31, 2002, the Company exercised an
option under this U.S. revolving credit facility and cancelled the
$200.0 million 364-day portion of the agreement; there were no
borrowings under this agreement. The remaining $300.0 million
revolving credit facility extends to September 2008. The revolving
credit agreement is used as backstop for the U.S. commercial
paper program; there have been no borrowings under this agree-
ment. The Company compensates the banks participating in these
credit facilities in the form of fees, the amounts of which are
not material.

Short-term bank loans were outstanding in several foreign
countries and averaged $16.7 million in 2002, compared with
$36.4 million in 2001. The highest levels were $52.2 million in
2002, $69.0 million in 2001 and $55.3 million in 2000, respec-
tively. The 2002 weighted average interest rate of these foreign
bank loans, based on balances outstanding at the end of each
month, was 5% and the average rate on loans outstanding at
December 31, 2002 was 49%. These rates compare with 7% and
5%, respectively, in 2001 and 8% and 8% in 2000, respectively.

Annual maturities on long-term debt outstanding at
December 31, 2002 are as follows: 2003, $0.7 million; 2004,
$1.0 million; 2005, $45.0 million; 2008, $770.0 million. At
December 31, 2002, the estimated fair value of the $700.0 million
6.45% Notes, including the interest rate swaps, was $761.6 mil-
lion. The estimated fair value of the remaining long-term debt at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, based on borrowing rates currently
available to the Company with similar terms and maturities,
approximated the recorded amount.

Cash payments for interest were $61.6 million in 2002,
$77.2 million in 2001 and $19.6 million in 2000.

At December 31, 2002, the Company and its subsidiaries
had unused lines of credit approximating $368.0 million in addition
to the facility serving as backstop to the Company’s commercial
paper program.

NOTE 10. INCOME TAXES

The following tables show the components of consolidated
income before taxes, and current and deferred income tax expense
by taxing jurisdiction, both domestic and foreign:

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2000
U.S. loss before taxes $ (8,918) $(59,390) $(33,183)
Foreign income before taxes 275,335 247,167 217,310
Total income before taxes $266,417 | $187,777 $184,127
{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2000
Current
Federal $18,452| $ 7507 $ (640)
State and local 1,884 3,816 381
Foreign 76,518 78,565 91,877
96,854 89,888 91618
Deferred
Federal (19,496) (17,836} (20,543)
State and local (2,591) (5,821) (1,484)
Foreign 15,706 5,544 (8,469)
(6,381)] (18,113} (30,496}
Total income taxes $90473] $71775 $61,122

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, gross deferred tax assets

were $146.8 million and $115.7 million, respectively; gross
deferred tax liabilities were $77.2 million and $82.8 mitlion, respec-
tively. No valuation allowance was required for deferred tax assets.
At December 31, 2002, noncurrent deferred tax assets of $2.5 mil-
lion were included in Other assets. The principal components of
deferred tax assets (liabilities) were:

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001
Employee and retiree benefits $71,700| $69,000
Inventory 5,800 2,500
Tax credit carryforwards 13,800 5,200
Property, plant and equipment (8,200) (8,000)
Trademarks and other (41,500) (52,400)
Interest 17,400 6,000
Foreign earnings (19,400} (17,600}
Other, net 30,000 | 28,200

$69,600 | _$32,900

Of the Company's tax credit carryforwards, $6.3 million will
expire, if unused, beginning in 2005; the remaining $7.5 million can
be carried forward indefinitely.
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A reconciliation between the U.S. federal income tax rate
and the effective tax rate is:

2002 2001 2000

Statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Difference in effective tax

rate on foreign earnings

and remittances 0.1 (1.4) (0.3)
State and local taxes (0.2) (0.7) (0.4)
Goodwill - 6.0 0.9
Other, net (0.9 {0.7) {2.0)
Effective tax rate 34.0% 38.2% 33.2%

Income taxes paid were $100.3 million in 2002, $88.6 mil-
lion in 2001 and $81.0 million in 2000.

Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries for which
no deferred taxes have been provided totaled $576.6 million at
December 31, 2002. Any additional U.S. taxes payable on these
foreign earnings, if remitted, would be substantially offset by cred-
its for foreign taxes already paid.

NOTE 11. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In January 2001, the Company awarded approximately
190,000 IFF Stock Units (“Units”) to eligible employees in exchange
for surrender of their "under water” stock options. The Units vest, in
four equal instaliments, over not more than a seven-year period,
upon the Company’s common stock attaining successively higher
market price targets beginning at $22.50 per share, and earn divi-
dend equivalents as and when cash dividends are paid. Compen-
sation expense is recognized over the Units' vesting period. in
2001, the first two market price targets were achieved and 50% of
such Units vested; compensation expense of $1.7 million was rec-
ognized and included in operating expenses. In 2002, the third
price target of $31.50 was achieved and the Company recognized
compensation expense of $0.8 million which is included in oper-
ating expenses. The remaining unvested Units are reported as
Restricted stock on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet.

On August 1, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors
granted an award of 200,000 restricted shares of the Company's
common stock. Entitlement to all or a portion of the restricted
award is subject to the Company’'s achieving certain levels of
shareholder return compared to those of a specified group of com-
panies, over the three, four and five year periods commencing
August 1, 2002, Compensation expense relating to the award is
recognized over the restriction period.

On March 9, 2000, the Company adopted a shareholder
protection rights agreement (the "Rights Agreement") and
declared a dividend of one right on each share of common stock
outstanding on March 24, 2000 or issued thereafter.

Under the Rights Agreement, as amended, until a person or
group acquires 15% or more of the Company's common stock or
commences a tender offer that would result in such person's or
group’s owning 15% or more, the rights are evidenced by the com-
mon stock certificates, automatically trade with the common stock
and are not exercisable.

Thereafter, if the Company is involved in a merger or sells
more than 50% of its assets or earning power, each right entitles
its holder to purchase a certain number of shares for a specified
exercise price. Also, under certain circumstances, the Company’s
Board of Directors has the option to redeem or exchange one
share of common stock for each right. Finally, in the event a new
Board of Directors is elected in a successful proxy contest, (i) the
tights may not be redeemed and no business combination with the
Company can be effected for 180 days thereafter uniess certain
procedures are followed to ensure (A) that steps are taken to maxi-
mize shareholder value, or (B) that any decision to redeem the
rights, if challenged, would meet an “entire fairness” test; and
(i) the Rights Agreement may not be amended during such
180-day period. To establish “entire fairmess” in connection with a
redemption, the new Board must be able to demonstrate that all
aspects of the redemption decision were fair, including the
redemption procedure and the financial terms of the redemption.
The Rights Agreement expires in March 2010.

Dividends paid per share were $0.60, $0.60, and $1.29, in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Accumulated other comprehensive income balance
includes Cumulative translation adjustments of ($138.2) million
and ($156.3) million, Accumulated gains or (losses) on derivatives
gualifying as hedges of $0.7 million and ($2.3) million, and
Minimum pension liability of ($75.0) million and {($20.0) million, in
2002 and 2001, respectively. Amounts are shown net of tax,
where appropriate.

NOTE 12. STOCK PLANS

The Company has various stock option plans under which
the Company’s officers, directors and key employees may be
granted options to purchase the Company's common stock at
100% of the market price on the day the option is granted.

Options granted prior to May 2001 generally become exer-
cisable no earlier than two years after the date of grant and expire
ten years after the date of grant, except for options granted ta two
senior executives in 2000 and certain other options granted to for-
eign employees, which may be exercised immediately. Options
granted in November 2000, however, constituting approximately
17% of options outstanding (as of December 31, 2002), generally
become exercisable in four equal installments as corresponding




market price targets for the Company's common stock of $22.50,
$27.00, $31.50 and $36.00 are attained, and expire seven years
after the date of grant or sooner if certain price levels (which differ
among individuals) are achieved.

Options granted after May 1, 2001 generally become exer-
cisable no earlier than one year from the date of grant and expire
10 years after grant date, except for options granted to certain for-
eign employees, which may be exercised immediately.

During 2002, options to purchase common stock were
granted at exercise prices ranging from $28.77 to $34.22 per
share. At December 31, 2002, the price range for shares under
option was $17.94 to $49.88; options for 4,292,202 shares were
exercisable at that date.

Stock plan transactions were:

Weighted

Shares of Common Stock Average

Available Under Exercise

for Grant Option Price

Balance January 1, 2000 1,658,004 4,580,174 $42.69
Granted {(5,761,502) 5,761,502 24.13
Exercised - (75,297) 21.46
Terminated 661,422 (661,422) 43.85
Lapsed (54,500) - -
Increase under 2000 plans 9,450,000 ~ -
Balance December 31,2000 5,953,424 9,604,957 31.55
Granted (2,042,000) 2,042,000 27.06
Exercised - (288,400) 17.94
Terminated 2,997,188 (2,997,188) 38.00
Lapsed (113,143) - -
Reserved for Units (83,888) - -
Balance December 31, 2001 6,711,681 8,361,369 28.37
Granted (2,899,950) 2,899,950 32.19
Exercised - {1,356,964) 18.42
Terminated 154,947 (154,947) 31.40
Lapsed (1,735,856) (87,500) 34.57
Reserved for Units (50,710) - -
Increase under existing plans 4,500,000 - -
Restricted Stock award (200,000) - -
Balance December 31, 2002 6,480,012 9,661,908 $30.66

The following table summarizes information concerning cur-
rently outstanding and exercisable options:

Range of Exercise Prices
$10-$30 %$30-$50

Number outstanding
Weighted average remaining contractual
life, in years 8.2 7.4

4,131,338 5,530,569

Weighted average exercise price $23.47 $36.04
Number exercisable 1,868,978 2,423,224
Weighted average exercise price $21.72 $39.65

Using the Black-Scholes option valuation model, the esti-
mated fair values of options granted during 2002, 2001 and 2000
were $10.07, $8.09, and $5.50, respectively. The Black-Scholes
model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options that have no vesting restrictions. In addition, such models
require the use of subjective assumptions, including expected
stock price volatility. In management’s opinion, such valuation mod-
els do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair
value of its employee stock options.

Principal assumptions used in applying the Black-Scholes
model were as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Risk-free interest rate 4.5% 4.8% 6.20%
Expected life, in years 5 5 5
Expected volatility 33.7% 32.2% 26.9%
Expected dividend yield 1.8% 2.2% 3.8%

NOTE 13. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company manages its operations by major geographical
region. Flavors and fragrances have similar economic and opera-
tional characteristics including research and development, the
nature of the creative and production processes, the type of cus-
tomers, and the methods by which products are distributed.
Accounting policies used for segment reporting are identical to
those described in Note 1.

The Company evaluates the performance of its geographic
regions based on operating profit, excluding interest expense,
other income and expense, certain unallocated expenses, amortiza-
tion of goodwill, the effects of nonrecurring items and accounting
changes, and income tax expense (“segment profit”). Transfers
between geographic areas are accounted for at prices that approx-
imate arm's length market prices. Unallocated assets are princi-
pally cash, short-term investments and other corporate assets,

The Company is divided into five geographic regions for man-
agement purposes: North America, Latin America, Europe, Asia
Pacific and India Region.

The Company's reportable segment information, based on -

geographic region, follows. Certain prior year amounts have been
reclassified for comparative purposes to reflect geographic align-
ment and the adoption of FAS 142.
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2002 North India Latin Asia
(DOLLARS IN THOUSAKDS) America Europe Region America Pacific Eliminations Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers $592,974 $695,384 $37,626 $216,938 $266,327 $ - $1,809,249
Transfers between areas 86,089 127,830 1,766 1,022 17,126 (233,833) -
Total sales $679,063 $823,214 $39,392 $217,860 $283,453 $(233,833) $1,809,249
Segment profit $ 81,888 $161,720 $ 9,311 $ 48,596 $ 52619 $ 983 $ 355,117
Corporate and other
unallocated expenses (43,518)
Nonrecurring charges (11,737)
Interest expense (37,036)
Other income {expense), net 3,591
income before taxes on income $ 266,417
Segment assets $789,642 $883,050 $55,088 $159,425 $357,908 $2,177,848
Unallocated assets 54,846
Total assets $2,232 694
2001 North {ndia Latin Asia
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) America Europe Region America Pacific Eliminations Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers $616,806 $682,574 $32,684 $245517 $266,185 $ - $1,843,766
Transfers between areas 83,115 134,862 2,698 1,678 16,620 (238,973) -
Total sales $699,921 $817,436 $35,382  $247,195 $282,805  $(238,973) $1,843,766
Segment profit $ 86,928 $158,175 $ 7,857 $ 52,907 $ 58,708 $ 2691 $ 367,358
Corporate and other
unallocated expenses (48,624}
Amortization of goodwill (33,071)
Nonrecurring charges (30,069)
Interest expense (70,424)
Other income (expense), net 2,609
Income before taxes on income $ 187,777
Segment assets $836,208  $803,011 $55572  $197,365  $340,134  $ (41,916) $2,190,374
Unallocated assets 77,677
Total assets $2,268,051
2000 North India Latin Asia
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) America Europe Region America Pacific Eliminations Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers $470,953 $560,803 $ 4,069 $220,287 $206,683 $ ~ $1,462,795
Transfers between areas 55,610 117,528 63 1,036 13,779 (188,916) —
Total sales $526,563  $678,331 $ 4132  $222923 $220.462  $(188,916) $1,462,795
Segment profit $ 47846 $161,126 $ 425 $ 38914  $ 39664 $ 1762 $ 289,737
Corporate and other
unallocated expenses (31,919)
Amortization of goodwill (5,032)
Nonrecurting charges (41,273)
Interest expense (25,072)
Other income (expense), net (2,314)
Jncome before taxes on income $ 184,127
Segment assets $845,378 $883,614 $51,850 $231,455 $355,287 $ (31,737) $2,335,847
Unallocated assets 153,186
Total assets $2,489,033




Capital Expenditures

Depreciation and Amortization

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
North America $23,129 $18,531 $30,586 $33,782| $ 33,784 $26,691
Europe 29,688 20,441 14,628 21,819 27,616 21,247
India Region 555 491 186 534 533 142
Latin America 3,206 1,559 4,806 3,067 4,628 5,154
Asia Pacific 8,445 4,571 7,500 7,447 7,749 5,975
Unallocated assets 16,792 6,423 2,980 5,078 49,183 10,135
Consolidated $81,815 $52,016 $60,696 $71,827 $123,493 $69,344

Sales of fragrance products were $1,000.2 million, $1,008.1 million, and $865.1 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Sales of
flavor products were $809.0 million, $835.7 miliion, $597.7 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Sales in the United States,
based on the final country of destination of the Company’s products, were $544.3 million, $570.5 million, $435.1 million in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. No other individual country of destination exceeded 8% of consolidated sales. No customer accounted for 10% or
more of sales in 2002 or 2007; the Company’s largest customer accounted for 10% of sales in 2000. Total long-lived assets consists of
net property, plant and equipment and net intangible assets and amounted to $1,303.0 million, $1,328.4 million, and $1,435.8 million at
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively; of the respective totals, $1,029.6 million, $1,071.1 million, $1,055.5 million were
located in the United States. No other individual country had long-lived assets that exceeded 10% of total long-lived assets.

Net foreign exchange gains of $2.3 million in 2002 and $1.9 million in 2001, and losses of $1.9 million in 2000 are included in
other income.

NOTE 14. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company and most of its subsidiaries have pension and/or other retirement benefit plans covering substantially all employees.
Pension benefits are generally based on years of service and on compensation during the final years of employment. Plan assets consist pri-
marily of equity securities and corporate and government fixed income securities. Substantially all pension benefit costs are funded as
accrued; however, such funding is limited, where applicable, to amounts deductible for income tax purposes. Certain other retirement bene-
fits are provided by balance sheet accruals. Contributions to defined contribution plans are mainly determined as a percentage of profits.
Effective January 1, 2001, contributions to the Company’s United States defined contribution plan match 50% of the employee’s pretax con-
tributions, up to plan limits.

In addition to pension benefits, certain health care and life insurance benefits are provided to qualifying United States employees upon
retirement from the Company. Such coverage is provided through insurance plans with premiums based on benefits paid. The Company does
not generally provide health care and life insurance coverage for retired employees of foreign subsidiaries; however, such benefits are pro-
vided in most foreign countries by government-sponsored plans, and the cost of these programs is not significant to the Company.

Pension expense included the following components:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Service cost for benefits earned $ 7874, $ 7203 $ 5104 $ 7,327 $ 9,552 $ 6,051
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 19,091 18,351 14,151 21,338 24,306 9,471
Expected return on plan assets (23,508) (23,082) (16,757) (23,455) (27,691) (10,688)
Net amortization and deferrals (3086) (1,347) (1,414) 2,923 679 777
Defined benefit plans 3,163 1,215 1,084 8,134 6,846 5611
Defined contribution and other retirement plans 3,121 2,368 2,386 3,227 2,425 3,173
Total pension expense $ 6274 $ 3,583 $ 3470 $ 11,361 $ 9,271 $ 8,784




Expense recognized for postretirement benefits included the following components:

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2001

2000

Service cost for benefits earned
Interest on benefit obligation
Net amortization and deferrals

Total postretirement benefit expense

Changes in pension and postretirement benefit obligations were:

U.S. Pension Plans

$1,722
5,377
508

$1,500
4,104
13

$7,607

$5,617

Non-U.S. Pension Plans

Postretirvement Benefits

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $256,647 $250,354 $351,390 $333,691 $83,508 $68,832
Service cost for benefits earned 7,874 7,293 7,327 9,552 2,034 1,722
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 19,091 18,351 21,339 24,306 5,545 5,377
Actuarial (gain) loss 18,934 (8,027) 7,821 (6,476) 6,488 9,651

Plan amendments 631 - - - - -
Plan participants' contributions - - 106 90 165 105
Benefits paid (15,400) (18,572) (18,025) (18,336) (5,455) (4,083)
Acquisitions - - - 16,496 - 1,902
Special termination benefits - 2,248 - 382 - -
Translation adjustments - - 44,719 (13,315) - -
Benefit obligation at end of year $287,777 |  $256,647  $414,777| $351,390 $92,283 $83,506

Changes in pension plan assets were:
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2002 2001

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $256,189 $287,375  $294,993 $347,346
Actual return on plan assets (31,143) (19,487) (34,702) (34,487)
Employer contributions 10,310 1,873 35,792 8,729
Plan participants’ contributions - - 1086 80
Benefits paid (15,400) (13,572) (18,025) (13,336)
Translation adjustments - - 36,001 (13,339)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $219,956 $256,189  $314,165 $294,993

The funded status of pension and postretirement plans at December 31 was:

U.S. Pension Plans

Non-U.S. Pension Plans

Postretirement Benefits

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Plan assets (less than) projected

benefit obligation $(67,821) $ (458 $(100,612) $(56,397) $(92,283) $(83,5086)
Remaining balance of unrecognized net (asset)

liability established at adoption of FAS 87 (286) (928) 676 811 - -
Unrecognized prior service cost 8,867 9,101 3,861 3,802 (1,700) (1,842)
Unrecognized net (gain) loss 49,458 (24,654) 128,115 53,421 29,250 23,540
Net asset (liability) $ (9,782) $(16,939) $ 32,040 $ 1,637 $(64,733) $(61,808)




Pension assets and liabilities included in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at December 31 were:

Principal actuarial assumptions used to determine the above
postretirement data were:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans 2002 2001
{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 2002 2001 Discount rate 6.7% 7.90
Prepaid benefit cost $ -| $ 6408 $30950{ $ 281 Current medical cost trend rate 10.0% 10.0%
Accrued benefit Ultimate medical cost trend rate 5.0% 5.0%
liability (41,289)  (28,650)  (86,413)  (30,869) Medical cost trend rate decreases to
Accumulated other ultimate rate in year 2009 2007
comprehensive
mc?me 23,301 803 85,693 27,940 The effect of a 1% increase in the assumed medical rate of
Intangible asset 8,206 - 1,810 4285 . . . . .
inflation would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit

Principal weighted average actuarial assumptions used to
determine the above pension data were:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2002 2001 2002 2001

Discount rate 6.7% 7.2% 5.5% 5.9%
Weighted average

rate of

compensation

increase 4.0% 4.5% 2.8% 3.2%
Long-term rate of

return on

plan assets 9.0% 9.0% 7.5% 7.5%

Discount rates used for determining future pension obliga-
tions of individual plans are based on a review of long-term bonds
that receive a high rating by a recognized rating agency. The
weighted average rates of compensation increase were deter-
mined based on actual data for the individual plans. For purposes
of determining the 2003 results for the U.S.-based plans, the long-
term rate of return will be 8.5%:; this rate of return is based on an
asset allocation of approximately 35% fixed income, corporate and
government bonds expected to yield 5-7%, and 85% in equity
investments that are expected to yield 9-11% in the long term. The
plan has employed a similar asset allocation strategy for the prior
fifteen-year period and has achieved a compound annual return
of approximately 9.4%. Similar assessments were made for all
non-U.S. plans.

obligation, and the annual postretirement expense, by approxi-
mately $15.7 million and $1.6 miltion, respectively; a 1% decrease
in the rate would decrease the obligation and expense by approxi-
mately $12.5 million and $1.3 million, respectively.

As described in Note 2, during 2000, the Company initiated
two separate voluntary retirement incentive programs for United
States-based employees meeting certain eligibility requirements.
Those eligible employees who elected to take the incentive received
additional credit, for pension purposes, in terms of age and service,
as well as other benefits. Approximately 150 employees accepted
enhanced retirement benefits under these two programs and costs
relating thereto are reflected as special termination benefits above.
The special termination benefit of $2.2 million recognized during
2001 represents the liability on account of social security supple-
mental benefit payments to be made to those participants who
elected to retire under the most recent window program imple-
mented during 2001.

The Company recorded a minimum pension liability of
$94.2 million and $27.0 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, as required by Financial Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 87. The adjustment is reflected in Accumulated other
comprehensive income and Retirement and other liabilities, as
appropriate, and is prescribed when the accumulated benefit obli-
gation in the plan exceeds the fair value of the underlying pension
plan assets and accrued pension liabilities. The adjustment relates
to plans in the United States, the United Kingdom, and Japan.
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NOTE 15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has entered into a series of swaps effectively
converting the fixed $700.0 million 6.45% Notes coupon interest
rate to a variable short-term rate based upon the London InterBank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus an interest markup. Periodically, the
Company has amended the swaps, changing the short-term
LIBOR basis and the related spread. As a result of these amend-
ments and changes, the counter-party paid the Company $56.5 mil-
lion in 2002 and $19.9 millien in 2001, including accrued swap
interest of $6.5 million and $3.3 million, respectively. The net real-
ized gains on the swaps have been deferred, classified as a sepa-
rate component of debt, and are being amortized to income as a
reduction in interest expense over the remaining term of the debt.
In addition, in 2002, the Company entered into a series of swaps to
convert its long-term Japanese Yen borrowings from fixed rate to
short-term Japanese Yen LIBOR rates. To the extent the Company
has not received cash or otherwise amended or settled any swap
agreements, any applicable mark-to-market adjustment relating to
that swap is included as a separate component of debt and is
amortized over the remaining term of the underlying swap. These
swaps are designated as qualified fair value hedges. The Company
had no ineffective interest rate swaps at December 31, 2002.

The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts
with the objective of reducing exposure to cash flow volatility asso-
ciated with foreign currency receivables and payables, and with
anticipated purchases of certain raw materials used in operations.
These contracts, the counterparties to which are major inter-
national financial institutions, generally involve the exchange of one
currency for a second currency at a future date, and have maturities
which do not exceed six months. The notional amount and maturity
dates of such contracts match those of the underlying trans-
actions. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had out-
standing foreign currency forward contracts with notional amounts
approximating $131.4 million and $97.3 million, respectively. The
Company has designated these contracts as qualified fair value
and cash flow hedges as appropriate. Accordingly, the effective
portion of any gain or loss on a derivative instrument reported
as a cash flow hedge is reported as a component of Accumulated
other comprehensive income and recognized in earnings in the

same period or periods during which the hedged transaction
affects earnings. The Company had no ineffective foreign currency
forward contracts at December 31, 2002 or 2001.

NOTE 16. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company has no significant concentrations of risk in
financial instruments. Temporary investments are made in a well-
diversified portfolio of high-quality, liquid obligations of govern-
ment, corporate and financial institutions. There are also limited
concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables
because of the large number of customers spread across many
industries and geographic regions.

NOTE 17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operat-
ing leases for office and warehouse facilities are $8.9 million in 2003,
$7.9 million in 2004, $6.5 million in 2005, $5.2 million in 20086,
$4.4 million in 2007 and $4.2 million thereafter to 2024; the aggre-
gate lease obligations are $102.3 million. The corresponding rental
expense amounted to $12.1 million and $2.2 million in 2002 and
2001, respectively; rental expense was not significant in 2000.

There are various lawsuits and claims pending against the
Company. Management believes that any liability resulting from
those actions or claims will not have a material adverse effect on
the Company's financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

NOTE 18. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company held a note
receivable from an executive officer, resulting from the exercise of a
stock option. This note bears interest, determined and payable
quarterly, at the higher of a market rate for such a loan by a third-
party lender or the Company’s weighted average cost of borrowed
funds. The applicable rate as of December 31, 2002 and 200t
was 3.3% and 4.1%, respectively. The note is collateralized by
55,000 shares of common stock and is due in full on the earlier of
November 14, 2007 termination of employment as an executive
officer, or when and if the market value of the collateral is less than
110% of the outstanding principal balance of the loan.



QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS
EXCEPT PER

Net Income Per Share(®)

SHARE AMOUNTS) Net Sales Gross Profit Met Income(@) Basic Diluted
Quarter 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
First $ 445844| $ 483,661 $185,980 $199,522 $ 41,947 $ 20,272 $0.44 $0.21 $0.44 $0.21
Second 476,336 478,216 203,724 208,710 45,401 33,005 0.48 0.34 0.47 0.34
Third 462,777 462,719 201,702 194,088 49,599 33,5655 0.562 0.35 0.52 0.35
Fourth 424,292 419,170 182,008 178,013 38,997 29,170 0.41 0.31 0.41 0.30
$1,800,249| $1,843,766  $773,414| $780,333  $175944| $116,002 $1.86; $1.21  $1 .84J $1.20

{a) Net income for the 2002 second and third quarters includes the after-tax effects of certain charges of $8,091 and $1,654, respectively. Net income for the 2001 first, second and third
quarters includes the after-tax effects of certain charges of $7,762, $56,663 and $5,676, respectively. See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.
(b) The sum of the 2002 quarters' basic net income per share does not equal the earnings per share for the full year 2002 due to changes in average shares outstanding.

STCCK PRICES

The Company's common stock is traded principally on the New York Stock Exchange. The high and low stock prices for each
quarter during the last two years were:

2002 2001
Quarter High Low High Low
First $35.95 $27.33| $22.76 $19.75
Second 37.45  30.61 28.20 21.25
Third 3290 26.05 31.60 2497
Fourth 35.80 32.08 31.69 24.10
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

2002

2001

2000

International Flavors & Fragrances Inc.

1999

1998

Consolidated Statement of Income Data
Net sales

Cost of goods sold

Research and development expenses

Selling and administrative expenses
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles
Nonrecurring charges(a)(b){c)(d)

Interest expense

Other (income) expense, net

Income before taxes on income
Taxes on income
Net income

% of net sales

% of average shareholders’ equity
Net income per share - basic
Net income per share ~ diluted

Average number of shares (thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Cash and short-term investments
Receivables, net

Inventories

Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

Total assets

Bank loans and commercial paper
Long-term debt

Shareholders’ equity

Other Data
Current ratio
Gross additicns to property, plant and equipment
Depreciation and amortization expense
Cash dividends declared
Per share
Number of shareholders of record at year-end
Number of employees at year-end

(
(
(
(

$1,809,248

$1,843,766

$1,462,795

$1,439,499

$1,407,349

1,035,835
144,027
305,156

12,632
11,737
37,036
(3,591)

1,063,433
135,248
313,335

46,089
30,069
70,424

(2,609)

831,653
112,671
258,653
7,032
41,273
25,072
2314

806,382
103,794
248,047
32,948
5,154
(291)

777,764
98,438
224,393

2,042
(6,3586)

1,542,832

1,655,989

1,278,668

1,196,034

1,096,281

266,417
90,473

187,777
71,775

184,127
61,122

243,465
81,465

311,068
107,283

$ 175,944

$ 116,002

$ 123,005

$ 162,000

$ 203,785

9.7
320
$1.86
$1.84

6.3
20.1
$1.21
$1.20

8.4
16.5
$1.22
$1.22

11.3
18.0
$1.53
$1.53

145
209
$1.90
$1.90

94,511

95,770

101,073

105,748

107,122

$ 15,165 $ 48,005 $ 129,238 $ 62,971 $ 115,999
338,607 340,358 364,314 303,418 283,480
421,603 415,084 435,312 415,269 403,961
520,499 532,473 679,874 523,916 498,784
782,703 795,920 755,923 - -

2,232,694 2,268,051 2,489,033 1,401,495 1,388,064
49,663 227,945 852,985 92,474 29,072
1,007,085 939,404 417,402 3,832 4,341
574,678 524,170 631,259 858,497 945,051

2.4 1.6 0.9 2.3 3.1

$ 81815 $ 52016 $ 60,606 $ 103,835 $ 91,690
84,458 123,493 69,344 56,369 49,006
56,749 57,219 130,234 160,830 159,513

$0.60 $0.60 $1.29 $1.52 $1.49
3,875 3,394 3,741 4,209 4,653
5,728 5,929 6,614 4,682 4,669

a) Nonrecurring charges {$7,745 after tax) in 2002 resulted from the Company's reorganization program.
b} Nonrecurring charges ($19,101 after tax} in 2001 resulted from the Company’s reorganization program.
c) Nonrecurring charges ($26,7656 after tax) in 2000 resulted from the Company’s reorganization program.

d) Nonrecurring charges ($21,910 after tax) in 1999 resulted from the Company's program to streamline its operations worldwide.
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at the
offices of the Company, 521 West 57th Street, New York, New
York, on Tuesday, May 14, 2003 at 10:00 a.m., EDT.

A proxy statement and form of proxy will be mailed to each
shareholder on or about March 28, 2003.

FORM 10-K

A copy of the Company's report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission on Form 10-K will be available on or abouit
March 28, 2003.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Wachovia Bank, National Association
Shareholder Services Group

1525 West W.T. Harris Boulevard, 3C3
Charlotte, NC 28288-1153
800-829-8432
equityservices@wachovia.com
www.wachovia.com/shareholderservices

LISTED

New York Stock Exchange
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

WEB SITE

www.iff.com

This book is printed on recycled paper.

Design by Addison www.addison.com
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* “When people ask me what IFF
does, | tell them we influence
people’s taste buds”

“We might be an international
Company but we're still allowed
to have an Australian style”

“IFF is unique because we
create, and creating is the
essence of evolution”

“I lke working at IFF because
there is always a new chal-
lenge to face. It's learning from
successes and sometimes the
failures in these challenges
that help both the individual
and the Company to continue
to strive for excellence”
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